
ENERGY PARTNERS LTD
Form 10-Q
August 09, 2006
Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2006

OR

¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

Commission file number 001-16179

ENERGY PARTNERS, LTD.
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Delaware 72-1409562
(State or Other Jurisdiction of

Incorporation or Organization)

(I.R.S. Employer

Identification Number)

201 St. Charles Ave., Suite 3400 New Orleans, Louisiana 70170
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

Registrant�s telephone number, including area code: (504) 569-1875
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Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of
�accelerated filer� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one)

Large accelerated filer  x Accelerated filer  ¨ Non-accelerated filer  ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x

As of August 7, 2006, there were 38,396,001 shares of the Registrant�s Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share, outstanding.
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Item 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ENERGY PARTNERS, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share data)

June 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

(Unaudited)
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,879 $ 6,789
Trade accounts receivable 80,022 78,326
Other receivables 73,459 49,303
Deferred tax assets 2,291 5,582
Prepaid expenses 2,211 3,179

Total current assets 170,862 143,179

Property and equipment, at cost under the successful efforts method of accounting for oil and natural gas
properties 1,354,727 1,189,078
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization (508,538) (418,347)

Net property and equipment 846,189 770,731

Other assets 55,452 13,284
Deferred financing costs � net of accumulated amortization of $5,662 in 2006 and $5,169 in 2005 5,225 4,091

$1,077,728 $ 931,285

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 56,425 $ 28,810
Accrued expenses 137,797 108,087
Fair value of commodity derivative instruments 4,333 9,875
Current maturities of long-term debt �  109

Total current liabilities 198,555 146,881

Long-term debt 270,000 235,000
Deferred tax liabilities 104,411 87,559
Asset retirement obligation 60,831 56,039
Other 4,860 11,213

638,657 536,692

Stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock, $1 par value. Authorized 1,700,000 shares; no shares issued and outstanding �  �  
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share. Authorized 100,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding: 2006 �
41,861,323 shares; 2005 � 41,468,093 shares 420 415
Additional paid-in capital 358,265 348,863
Accumulated other comprehensive loss - net of deferred taxes of $2,772 in 2006 and $7,098 in 2005 (4,929) (12,619)
Retained earnings 142,755 115,366
Treasury stock, at cost. 2006 - 3,479,814 shares; 2005 - 3,474,208 shares (57,440) (57,432)
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Total stockholders� equity 439,071 394,593
Commitments and contingencies

$1,077,728 $ 931,285

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

3

Edgar Filing: ENERGY PARTNERS LTD - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 5



Table of Contents

ENERGY PARTNERS, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005 2006 2005
Revenue:
Oil and natural gas $ 121,080 $ 106,230 $ 230,204 $ 203,683
Other 154 154 221 272

121,234 106,384 230,425 203,955

Costs and expenses:
Lease operating 17,121 14,114 29,486 26,557
Transportation expense 563 345 811 505
Taxes, other than on earnings 2,191 2,658 5,186 5,422
Exploration expenditures, dry hole costs and impairments 22,783 18,872 42,379 29,627
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 49,632 27,639 96,777 53,152
General and administrative 12,281 10,162 24,737 20,062
Other expense 2,804 228 1,877 321

Total costs and expenses 107,375 74,018 201,253 135,646

Business interruption recovery 10,594 �  23,283 �  
Income from operations 24,453 32,366 52,455 68,309

Other income (expense):
Interest income 473 110 752 295
Interest expense (5,199) (4,335) (10,283) (8,383)

(4,726) (4,225) (9,531) (8,088)

Income before income taxes 19,727 28,141 42,924 60,221
Income taxes (7,142) (10,091) (15,536) (21,750)

Net income 12,585 18,050 27,388 38,471

Less dividends earned on preferred stock and accretion of discount �  �  �  (944)

Net income available to common stockholders $ 12,585 $ 18,050 $ 27,388 $ 37,527

Basic earnings per share $ 0.33 $ 0.48 $ 0.72 $ 1.03

Diluted earnings per share $ 0.31 $ 0.45 $ 0.68 $ 0.95

Weighted average common shares used in computing income per share:
Basic 38,315 37,558 38,185 36,299
Incremental common shares
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Preferred stock �  �  �  1,096
Stock options 218 867 248 946
Warrants 1,715 1,926 1,829 1,907
Restricted share units 309 175 246 172
Performance shares 11 �  �  �  

Diluted 40,568 40,526 40,508 40,420

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ENERGY PARTNERS, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(UNAUDITED)

(In thousands)

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 27,388 $ 38,471
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 96,777 53,152
Loss on disposition of assets 2,830 92
Non cash-based compensation 4,914 3,807
Deferred income taxes 15,819 21,401
Exploration expenditures 32,856 21,332
Amortization of deferred financing costs 493 497
Other 795 379
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts receivable (1,696) (8,420)
Other receivables (24,156) (4,900)
Prepaid expenses 968 (3,942)
Other assets 332 (1,602)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 18,102 24,397
Other liabilities (492) (131)

Net cash provided by operating activities 174,930 144,533

Cash flows used in investing activities:
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (43,920) (863)
Property acquisitions (14,163) (183,986)
Exploration and development expenditures (146,544) (122,364)
Other property and equipment additions (334) (792)

Net cash used in investing activities (204,961) (308,005)

Cash flows provided by financing activities:
Equity offering costs �  (87)
Deferred financing costs (627) (357)
Repayments of long-term debt (30,109) (33,053)
Proceeds from long-term debt 65,000 105,000
Exercise of stock options and warrants 1,857 4,126

Net cash provided by financing activities 36,121 75,629

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 6,090 (87,843)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 6,789 93,537

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 12,879 $ 5,694

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

(1) BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Certain information and footnote disclosures normally in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles have been condensed or omitted pursuant to rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission; however, management
believes the disclosures which are made are adequate to make the information presented not misleading. These financial statements and
footnotes should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto included in Energy Partners, Ltd.�s (the Company) Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 and Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations. The Company maintains a website at www.eplweb.com which contains information about the Company including links to the
Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, registration statement on Form S-4 and
all related amendments. The Company�s website and the information contained in it and connected to it shall not be deemed incorporated by
reference into this report on Form 10-Q.

The financial information as of June 30, 2006 and for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 has not been audited.
However, in the opinion of management, all adjustments (which include only normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present fairly the
results of operations for the periods presented have been included therein. The results of operations for the first six months of the year are not
necessarily indicative of the results of operations which might be expected for the entire year.

(2) STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has two stock award plans, the 2006 Long Term Stock Incentive Plan and the Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Incentive Plan
for Non-Employee Directors. Prior to January 1, 2006 the Company accounted for its stock-based compensation in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board�s Opinion No. 25, �Accounting For Stock Issued to Employees� (Opinion No. 25) and related interpretations, as permitted by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, �Accounting For Stock-Based Compensation� (Statement 123) and Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 148, �Accounting For Stock-Based Compensation � Transition and Disclosure,� (Statement 148). Accordingly,
compensation expense for a stock option grant was recognized only if the exercise price was less than the fair market value of the Company�s
common stock on the grant date.

Effective January 1, 2006, the company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Standards No. 123 (R), �Share
Based Payment� (Statement 123(R)), using the modified prospective transition method. Under this method, stock based compensation expense
for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006 includes:

� compensation expense for all stock-based compensation awards granted prior to January 1, 2006, but not yet vested, based on the
grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of Statement 123, and

� compensation expense for all stock-based compensation awards granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair
value estimated in accordance with the provisions of Statement 123(R).

Prior to the adoption of Statement No. 123(R), the Company reported all tax benefits resulting from the exercise of stock options as operating
cash flows in its consolidated statements of cash flows. In accordance with Statement 123(R), the Company is now required to report the excess
tax benefits from the exercise of stock options as financing cash flows. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2006, no excess tax benefits
were reported in the statement of cash flows as the Company is in a net operating loss carryforward position.

6
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

(UNAUDITED)

The Company has a long term incentive plan authorizing various types of market and performance based incentive awards which may be granted
to officers and employees. The 2006 Long Term Stock Incentive Plan (the Employee Plan) provides for the grant of stock options for which the
exercise price, set at the time of the grant, is not less than the fair market value per share at the date of grant. The outstanding options have a
term of 10 years and generally vest over 3 years with a limited group of grants that cliff vest at the end of 5 years. The Employee Plan also
provides for restricted stock and restricted share units, which are referred to as non-vested share awards under Statement 123(R), and
performance share awards. The Employee Plan was approved by the board of directors and stockholders in May 2006 and is administered by the
Compensation Committee of the board of directors or such other committee as may be designated by the board of directors. The Compensation
Committee is authorized to select the employees of the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates who will receive awards, to determine the
types of awards to be granted to each person, and to establish the terms of each award. The total number of shares that may be issued under the
plan for all types of awards was 2,604,414 as of May 2006.

The Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors (the Director Plan) was approved by the board of directors
and our stockholders in May 2005. The Director Plan permits the use of restricted share units in addition to stock options to provide flexibility to
adjust grants to maintain a competitive equity component for non-employee directors. The number of shares authorized for issuance under the
Director Plan is 500,000. The size of any grants of stock options and restricted share units to non-employee directors, including to new directors,
will be determined annually, based on the analysis of an independent compensation consultant. The option exercise price for an option granted
under the Director Plan shall be the fair market value of the shares covered by the option at the time the option is granted. Options become fully
exercisable on the first anniversary of the date of the grant. Prior to the one-year anniversary, the options shall be exercisable as to a number of
shares covered by the option determined by pro-rating the number of shares covered by the option based on the number of days elapsed since the
date of the grant. Any portion of an option that has not become exercisable prior to the cessation of the optionee�s service as a director for any
reason shall not thereafter become exercisable. Each option shall expire on the earlier of (i) ten (10) years from the date of the granting thereof,
or (ii) thirty-six (36) months after the date the optionee ceases to be a director of the Company for any reason. Each restricted share unit
represents the right to receive one share of Common Stock upon the earlier to occur of: (i) the cessation of the eligible director�s service as a
director of the Company for any reason, or (ii) the occurrence of a change of control of the Company. An eligible director shall become 100%
vested in a grant of restricted share units on the first anniversary of the date of grant. Prior to the first anniversary of the grant, an eligible
director shall be vested in a number of restricted share units determined by pro-rating the grant based on the number of days elapsed since the
date of the grant. If the service of an eligible director ceases for any reason prior to the first anniversary of the grant, the director shall forfeit any
unvested restricted share units.

During the three month period ended June 30, 2006, the Company recognized compensation expense of $1.2 million for option shares, $1.4
million for non-vested share awards and $0.2 million for performance share awards. Of the $1.2 million option expense included in the
Company�s statements of operations for the quarter ended June 30, 2006, $0.8 million relates to awards granted prior to January 1, 2006. The
deferred income tax benefit recognized during that same period for the awards was $1.0 million. During the three month period ended June 30,
2005, the Company recognized $0.2 million of compensation expense for option shares due to the modification of an award under Opinion
No. 25, and recognized $1.2 million for non-vested share awards and $0.4 million for performance share awards. Total deferred income tax
benefit recognized during that same period for share awards was $0.7 million.

During the six month period ended June 30, 2006, the Company recognized compensation expense of $2.1 million for option shares, $2.7
million for non-vested share awards and a benefit of $0.1 million for performance share awards. The net benefit resulted from the expiration of
unvested performance shares granted in 2003. Of the $2.1 million option expense included in the Company�s statements of operations for the six
months ended June 30, 2006, $1.5 million relates to awards granted prior to January 1, 2006. The deferred income tax benefit recognized during
that same period for the awards was $1.7 million. During the six month period ended June 30, 2005, the Company recognized $0.7 million of
compensation expense for option shares due to the modification of an award under Opinion No. 25, and recognized $2.0 million for non-vested
share awards and $1.0 million for performance share awards. Total deferred income tax benefit recognized during that same period for share
awards was $1.3 million.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

(UNAUDITED)

The following table illustrates the pro forma effect on net income and earnings per common share for the three and six month periods ended
June 30, 2005 as if the Company had applied the fair value method to measure stock-based compensation, as required under the disclosure
provisions of Statement 123(R):

Three Months Ended
June 30, 2005

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2005

(in thousands, except per share
amounts)

Net income available to common stockholders:
As reported $ 18,050 $ 37,527
Less: Pro forma net stock based employee compensation cost, after tax (251) (171)

Pro forma $ 17,799 $ 37,356

Basic earnings per share:
As reported $ 0.48 $ 1.03
Pro forma $ 0.47 $ 1.03
Diluted earnings per share:
As reported $ 0.45 $ 0.95
Pro forma $ 0.44 $ 0.95
Stock-option based employee compensation cost, net of tax, included in net income as reported $ 120 $ 468
The fair value of each share option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation model with the following
weighted average assumptions for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2006 and 2005:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005 2006 2005
Black-Scholes option pricing model assumptions:
Risk free interest rate 4.4% 4.5% 4.4% 4.5%
Expected life (years) 4.79 5.00 4.79 5.00
Expected volatility 42% 43% 42% 43%
Dividend yield �  �  �  �  

Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Company�s stock over the period of time equivalent to the expected term of the
options granted. The expected term of options granted is derived from historical exercise patterns over a period of time with consideration of
expected term of unvested options. The Company has not experienced significant differences in the historical exercise patterns among officers,
employees and non-employee directors for them to be considered separately for valuation purposes. The risk-free interest rate is based on the
interest rate on constant maturity bonds published by the Federal Reserves with a maturity commensurate with the expected term of the options
granted.

Additionally, Statement 123(R) requires the Company to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures at the time of grant and periodically revise those
estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The Company records stock-based compensation expense only
for those awards expected to vest using an estimated forfeiture rate based on its historical pre-vesting forfeiture data. The Company did estimate
forfeitures for the pro forma disclosure provisions of Statement 123 for periods prior to 2006.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

(UNAUDITED)

A summary of option share activity for the six months ended June 30, 2006 is as follows:

Options

Weighted-
Average
Exercise
Price Per
Share

Weighted-
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Terms

(in years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

(in thousands)
Outstanding on January 1, 2006 1,828,109 $ 16.13
Granted 362,963 23.48
Exercised (4,000) 7.98
Forfeited/Cancelled (191,007) 25.41

Outstanding on June 30, 2006 1,996,065 $ 16.60 7.43 $ 33,130
Exercisable on June 30, 2006 1,243,711 $ 12.09 6.37 $ 15,040
The weighted-average grant-date fair value of option shares granted during the three month periods ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $11.43
and $9.32, respectively. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of option shares granted during the six month periods ended June 30, 2006
and 2005 was $9.94 and $10.75, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of option shares (the amount by which the market price of the stock
on the date of exercise exceeded the market price of the stock on the date of grant) exercised during the three months ended June 30, 2006 and
June 30, 2005 was zero and $3.4 million, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of option shares exercised during the six months ended
June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005 was $0.1 million and $5.0 million, respectively. The following table summarizes information about option
shares outstanding at June 30, 2006:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices Shares

Remaining

Contractual

Life

Weighted

Average

Price Shares

Weighted

Average

Price
$7.00 � $14.00 1,109,709 6.3 years $ 10.86 1,057,309 $ 10.73
$14.01 � $21.00 126,100 6.0 years $ 16.56 92,767 $ 15.70
$21.01 � $28.00 760,256 9.3 years $ 24.98 93,635 $ 23.95
The fair value of non-vested share awards equals the market value of the underlying stock on the date of grant. The weighted-average grant-date
fair value of the non-vested share awards granted during the three month periods ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $25.06 per share and $23.06
per share, respectively. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of the non-vested share awards granted during the six month periods ended
June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $22.54 per share and $26.33 per share, respectively. The total fair value of non-vested share awards that vested
during each of the three month periods ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $1.9 million and $1.1 million, respectively. The total fair value of
non-vested share awards that vested during each of the six month periods ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $2.8 million and $2.7 million,
respectively. A summary of the status of the Company�s non-vested share awards as of June 30, 2006 and changes during the six month period
ended June 30, 2006 is as follows:

Shares Weighted-
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Grant-Date

Fair Value
Non-vested share awards outstanding at January 1, 2006 656,629 $ 23.08
Granted 226,924 22.54
Vested (115,795) 18.85
Forfeited/Cancelled (45,192) 20.25

Non-vested share awards outstanding at June 30, 2006 722,566 $ 23.82
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

(UNAUDITED)

During the period from 2003 through 2005, performance shares were awarded to officers and key employees with the number of shares to be
issued upon vesting, at the end of their respective three year cycles, being based on certain performance measures. The shares awarded can range
from a minimum of 0% to a maximum of 200% of the target number of shares depending on the level at which the goals are attained. The
Company has not awarded any performance shares in 2006. In the six month period ended June 30, 2006, 55,111 shares vested and were issued
and 35,756 shares expired unvested or were forfeited leaving 331,190 shares reserved based on the maximum award available, of which 69,000
shares are considered probable of vesting as of June 30, 2006.

As of June 30, 2006, there was $6.6 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to option shares granted which is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.3 years. As of June 30, 2006, there was $10.7 million of total unrecognized compensation
expense related to non-vested share awards granted which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.5 years and as of
June 30, 2006, there was $1.2 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to performance shares granted which is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.3 years.

(3) ACQUISITIONS

On June 22, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement and plan of merger (the Merger Agreement) with Stone Energy Corporation (Stone),
pursuant to which EPL Acquisition Corp. LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, would acquire all of the shares of Stone for a
combination of cash and stock valued at approximately $2.1 billion based on the Company�s July 19, 2006 closing stock price of $17.50 per
share. Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, each share of Stone common stock will be converted into the right to receive, at the election of
the holder: (i) $51.00 in cash, or (ii) a number of shares of the Company�s common stock equivalent to the ratio determined by dividing $51.00
by the market price of the Company�s shares (based on a 20-day trading average prior to the third trading day preceding the closing), provided
that the exchange ratio will not be greater than 2.525 or less than 2.066 Company shares per Stone share. The election of cash or stock will be
subject to a limit on total cash consideration of approximately $723 million (which includes $15.5 million attributable to stock options) and a
limit on the total number of the Company�s shares issued of approximately 35 million. Prior to entering into the Merger Agreement, Stone
terminated its then existing merger agreement with Plains Exploration and Production Company (Plains) on the same day. As required under the
terms of the terminated merger agreement between Stone and Plains, Plains was entitled to a break-up fee of $43.5 million, which was advanced
by the Company to Plains and is included in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company anticipates financing the cash portion
of the merger with indebtedness as described under Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition. The acquisition is expected
to close early in the fourth quarter of 2006.

On March 8, 2005, the Company closed the acquisition of the remaining 50% working interest in South Timbalier 26 above approximately
13,000 feet subsea that it did not already own for approximately $19.6 million after preliminary closing adjustments from the effective date of
December 1, 2004. The entire purchase price was allocated to property and equipment. The terms of the acquisition did not contain any
contingent consideration, options or future commitments. As a result of the acquisition, the Company now owns a 100% working interest in the
producing horizons in this field. The acquisition expands the Company�s interest in its core Greater Bay Marchand area and gives the Company
additional flexibility in undertaking the future development of the South Timbalier 26 field.

On January 20, 2005, the Company closed an acquisition of properties and reserves in south Louisiana for approximately $149.6 million in cash,
after adjustments for the exercise of preferential rights by third parties and preliminary closing adjustments. The entire purchase price was
allocated to property and equipment. The terms of the acquisition did not contain any contingent consideration, options or future commitments.
The acquisition was composed of nine fields, four of which were producing at the time of the closing through 14 wells, with estimated
acquisition date proved reserves of 51.2 billion cubic feet equivalent. Also included were interests in 22 exploratory prospects. The transaction
expanded the Company�s exploration opportunities in its expanded focus area and further reduced the concentration of its reserves and
production. In connection with the acquisition, the Company also entered into a two-year agreement with the seller of the properties that defines
an area of mutual interest (AMI) encompassing over one million acres. The Company intends to continue to explore and develop oil and natural
gas reserves in the AMI over that two year period jointly with the seller. The proved reserves, prospects and AMI are in the southern portions of
Terrebone, Lafourche and Jefferson Parishes in Louisiana.

In connection with an acquisition in 2002, the Company issued among other things, 383,707 shares of newly authorized and issued Series D
Exchangeable Convertible Preferred Stock (the Series D Preferred Stock), with a $38.4 million
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

(UNAUDITED)

liquidation preference and an issue date fair value of $34.7 million discounted to give effect to the increasing dividend rate, and $38.4 million of
11% Senior Subordinated Notes (the Notes) due 2009 (immediately callable at par). On February 28, 2005, the Company gave notice of the
redemption of all of the Series D Preferred Stock issued in connection with the acquisition that remained outstanding on the redemption date of
March 21, 2005. The redemption price was $100 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends to the redemption date. Holders of record had the
right to convert their shares into shares of common stock through the close of business on March 18, 2005. All holders exercised their right to
convert their shares and there were no preferred shares outstanding as of the close of business on March 18, 2005.

The Company also issued warrants to purchase four million shares of the Company�s common stock in the same acquisition. Of the warrants, one
million had a strike price of $9.00 and three million had a strike price of $11.00 per share. The warrants became exercisable on January 15, 2003
and expire on January 15, 2007. At June 30, 2006 there were 685,506 warrants outstanding with a strike price of $9.00 per share and 2,417,829
warrants outstanding with a strike price of $11.00 per share.

In addition, former preferred stockholders of the acquired company have the right to receive contingent consideration based upon a percentage
of the amount by which the before tax net present value of proved reserves related, in general, to exploratory prospect acreage held by the
acquired company as of the closing date of the acquisition (the Ring-Fenced Properties) exceeds the net present value discounted at 30%. The
potential consideration is determined annually from March 3, 2003 until March 1, 2007. The cumulative percentage remitted to the participants
was 20% for the March 3, 2003, 30% for the March 1, 2004, 35% for the March 1, 2005 and 40% for the March 1, 2006 determination dates and
is 50% for the March 1, 2007 determination date. The contingent consideration, if any, may be paid in the Company�s common stock or cash at
the Company�s option (with a minimum of 20% in cash) and in no event will exceed a value of $50 million. In the first three months of 2006 and
2005, the Company capitalized, as additional purchase price, and paid additional consideration in cash, of $0.4 million and $0.9 million related
to the March 1, 2006 and the March 1, 2005 contingent consideration determination dates, respectively. Due to the uncertainty inherent in
estimating the value of future contingent consideration which includes annual revaluations based upon, among other things, drilling results from
the date of the prior revaluation, and development, operating and abandonment costs and production revenues (actual historical and future
projected, as contractually defined, as of each revaluation date) for the Ring-Fenced Properties, total final consideration will not be determined
until March 1, 2007. All additional contingent consideration will be capitalized as additional purchase price.

The Company has included the results of operations from the consumated acquisitions discussed above from their respective closing dates.

(4) COMMON STOCK

In the second quarter of 2006, the Company acquired 5,239 shares of its common stock in satisfaction of tax withholding requirements in
connection with employee stock incentive award transactions. All of these shares are reflected in treasury stock in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

(5) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed in the same manner as basic earnings per share except that the
denominator is increased to include the number of additional common shares that could have been outstanding assuming the conversion of
convertible preferred stock shares, and the exercise of warrants and stock options and the potential shares associated with restricted share units
and performance shares that would have a dilutive effect on earnings per share.

(6) HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company enters into hedging transactions with major financial institutions to reduce exposure to fluctuations in the price of oil and natural
gas. Any gains or losses resulting from the change in fair value from hedging transactions that are determined to be ineffective are recorded in
other revenue, whereas gains and losses from the settlement of hedging contracts are recorded in oil and natural gas revenue. Crude oil hedges
are settled based on the average of the reported settlement prices for West Texas Intermediate crude on the New York Mercantile Exchange
(NYMEX) for each month. Natural gas hedges are settled based on the average of the last three days of trading of the NYMEX Henry Hub
natural gas contract for each month.
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(UNAUDITED)

From time to time the Company uses financially-settled crude oil and natural gas swaps and zero cost collars to provide floor prices with varying
upside price participation. With a financially-settled swap, the counterparty is required to make a payment to the Company if the settlement price
for any settlement period is below the hedged price for the transaction, and the Company is required to make a payment to the counterparty if the
settlement price for any settlement period is above the hedged price for the transaction. With a zero-cost collar, the counterparty is required to
make a payment to the Company if the settlement price for any settlement period is below the floor price of the collar, and the Company is
required to make a payment to the counterparty if the settlement price for any settlement period is above the cap price for the collar.

The Company had the following hedging contracts as of June 30, 2006:

Natural Gas Positions

Volume (Mmbtu)
Remaining Contract Term Contract Type Strike Price ($/Mmbtu) Daily Total
07/06 � 12/06 Collar $5.00/$9.51 15,000 2,760,000
01/07 � 12/07 Collar $5.00/$8.00 10,000 3,650,000

Settlements of hedging contracts did not impact crude oil revenues in the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2006, respectively and
reduced natural gas revenues by none and $1.0 million in the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2006, respectively. The Company has
not discontinued hedge accounting treatment in the periods presented, and therefore, has not reclassified any gains or losses into earnings as a
result.

The following tables reconcile the change in accumulated other comprehensive income for the six month period ending June 30, 2006 and 2005.

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2006
(in thousands)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31, 2005 � net of taxes of $7,098 $ (12,619)
Net income $ 27,388
Other comprehensive income � net of tax
Hedging activities
Reclassification adjustments for settled contracts � net of taxes of $(347) 616
Changes in fair value of outstanding hedging positions � net of taxes of $(3,979) 7,074

Total other comprehensive income 7,690 7,690

Comprehensive income $ 35,078

Accumulated other comprehensive loss as of June 30, 2006 � net of taxes of $2,772 $ (4,929)
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(UNAUDITED)

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2005
(in thousands)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31, 2004 � net of taxes of $630 $ (1,119)
Net income $ 38,471
Other comprehensive loss � net of tax
Hedging activities
Reclassification adjustments for settled contracts � net of taxes of $(989) 1,759
Changes in fair value of outstanding hedging positions � net of taxes of $4,164 (7,404)

Total other comprehensive loss (5,645) (5,645)

Comprehensive income $ 32,826

Accumulated other comprehensive loss as of June 30, 2005 � net of taxes of $3,805 $ (6,764)

Based upon current prices, the Company expects to transfer approximately $4.3 million of pretax net deferred losses in accumulated other
comprehensive loss as of June 30, 2006 to earnings during the next twelve months when the forecasted transactions actually occur.

(7) OIL AND GAS PROPERTIES

Effective July 1, 2005, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff Position FAS 19-1 �Accounting for Suspended Well
Costs� (FSP 19-1). FSP 19-1 amended Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 19, �Financial Accounting and Reporting by Oil and Gas
Producing Companies,� (Statement 19) to permit the continued capitalization of exploratory well costs beyond one year if (a) the well found a
sufficient quantity of reserves to justify its completion as a producing well and (b) the entity is making sufficient progress assessing the reserves
and the economic and operating viability of the project. The Company has not and currently does not have any exploratory well costs that have
been capitalized for a period greater than one year for which proved reserves have not been booked.

(8) ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

Accounting and reporting standards require entities to record the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which
it is incurred and a corresponding increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. The following table reconciles the beginning
and ending aggregate recorded amount of the asset retirement obligation for the six months ended June 30, 2006.

Six Months Ended

June 30, 2006
(in thousands)

December 31, 2005 $ 56,039
Accretion expense 2,151
Revisions 1,484
Liabilities incurred 1,596
Liabilities settled (439)

June 30, 2006 $ 60,831
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(9) INDEBTEDNESS

On June 2, 2006, the Company amended and extended to May 2011 its bank credit facility and increased its borrowing base from $150 million
to $225 million. Modifications to the bank credit facility include, among other things, the expansion of the revolving credit facility to $300
million from $200 million (subject to borrowing base limitations) and improved grid pricing for interest rate margins and commitment fees. In
addition, under the amended bank credit facility, the Company has the ability to increase availability under the revolver to $400 million, subject
to borrowing base limitations. At June 30, 2006 the Company had $120 million outstanding under the bank credit facility and $105 million
available under its then current borrowing base of $225 million. The Company pays an annual fee on the unused portion of the facility ranging
between 0.30% to 0.50% based on utilization. The bank credit facility contains customary events of default and various financial covenants,
which require the Company to: (i) maintain a minimum current ratio, as defined in the bank credit facility agreement, of 1.0 and (ii) maintain a
minimum EBITDAX to interest ratio, as defined in the bank credit facility agreement, of 3.5. The Company was in compliance with the bank
credit facility covenants as of June 30, 2006. The borrowing base remains subject to redetermination based on the proved reserves of the oil and
natural gas properties that serve as collateral for the bank credit facility as set out in the reserve report delivered to the banks each April 1 and
October 1.

On August 5, 2003, the Company issued $150 million of 8.75% Senior Notes Due 2010 (the Senior Notes) in a Rule 144A private offering (the
Debt Offering) which allows unregistered transactions with qualified institutional buyers. In October 2003, the Company consummated an
exchange offer pursuant to which it exchanged registered Senior Notes (the Registered Senior Notes) having substantially identical terms as the
Senior Notes for the privately placed Senior Notes. After discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses, the Company received
$145.3 million, which was used to redeem all of the outstanding 11% Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2009, that had been issued in connection
with a business combination in 2002, and to repay substantially all of the borrowings outstanding under the Company�s bank credit facility. In
January 2005 the remainder of the net proceeds were used to purchase properties in south Louisiana as discussed in note (3).

The Registered Senior Notes mature on August 1, 2010 with interest payable each February 1 and August 1, commencing February 1, 2004. The
indenture relating to the Registered Senior Notes contains certain restrictions on the Company�s ability to incur additional debt, pay dividends on
its common stock, make investments, create liens on its assets, engage in transactions with its affiliates, transfer or sell assets and consolidate or
merge substantially all of its assets. The Registered Senior Notes are not subject to any sinking fund requirements.

(10) TROPICAL WEATHER

On August 29, 2005 Hurricane Katrina made landfall in the United States south of New Orleans causing catastrophic damage throughout
portions of the Gulf of Mexico and to portions of Alabama, Louisiana and Mississippi, including New Orleans. As a result of the devastating
effects of the storm on New Orleans and surrounding areas, the Company announced on August 30 that it had elected to establish temporary
headquarters at its Houston, Texas office. A satellite office was also established in Baton Rouge, Louisiana. General and administrative costs
associated with moving offices as well as relocation allowances paid to employees approximated $1.6 million during 2005.

On September 24, 2005 Hurricane Rita made landfall in the United States on the Texas/Louisiana border. This hurricane caused extensive
damage throughout portions of the Gulf of Mexico region particularly to third party infrastructure such as pipelines and processing plants.

As a result of these two major hurricanes and three other hurricanes that traversed the Gulf of Mexico and adjacent land areas, nearly all of the
Company�s production was shut in at one time or another during the third quarter of 2005 and a small portion of that production had not yet been
restored at the end of the second quarter of 2006. The Company is continuing to work to bring production back to pre-storm levels. The
Company maintained business interruption insurance during this period on its significant properties, including its East Bay field. Recovery of
lost revenue for the East Bay field and two other fields began accruing in October and recovery on a fourth field began accruing in November.
Recovery ceased for three of the fields in 2005, but will continue until the earlier of production being restored to pre-storm levels at the East Bay
field or the one year anniversary of the date on which that recovery began accruing in the field . Through June 30, 2006, the total business
interruption claim on these fields was $43.9 million, of which $16.5 million had not been collected as of June 30, 2006 and is recorded in other
receivables on the Company�s Consolidated Balance Sheet. Total offshore repair costs expended as of June 30, 2006 subject to insurance
recoveries, in excess of applicable deductibles and insured repair costs, for Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Cindy were $61.9 million of which
$53.4 million is recorded in other receivables on the Company�s consolidated balance sheet net of collections as of June 30, 2006 of $8.5 million.
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(11) NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 153 �Exchanges of Non-monetary assets � an amendment
of APB Opinion No. 29� (Statement 153). Statement 153 amends Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion 29 to eliminate the exception for
nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not
have commercial substance. A nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change
significantly as a result of the exchange. Statement 153 does not apply to a pooling of assets in a joint undertaking intended to fund, develop, or
produce oil or natural gas from a particular property or group of properties. The provisions of Statement 153 are effective for nonmonetary asset
exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. Early adoption is permitted and the provisions of Statement 153 should be
applied prospectively. The Company has adopted the provisions of Statement 153 and it did not have an impact on the financial position, results
of operations or cash flows of the Company.

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 154, �Accounting Changes and Error Corrections � a
replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3,� (Statement 154). Statement 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and
reporting of accounting changes and error corrections. It establishes, unless impracticable, retrospective application as the required method for
reporting a change in accounting principle in the absence of explicit transition requirements specific to Statement 154. The provisions of
Statement 154 shall be effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005.

In February 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 155, �Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments �
an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140� (Statement 155). Among other changes, Statement 155 eliminates the exemption from
applying FASB Statement No. 133 to interests in securitized financial assets so that similar instruments are accounted for similarly regardless of
the form of the instruments. Statement 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of an entity�s first fiscal
year that begins after September 15, 2006. The Company has assessed the impact of Statement 155 which will not have an impact on the
Company�s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 156, �Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets � an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 140� (Statement 156). Among other changes, Statement 156 requires that all separately recognized servicing
assets and servicing liabilities be initially measured at fair value, if practicable. Statement 156 is effective for all fiscal years beginning after
September 15, 2006. The Company has assessed the impact of Statement 156 which will not have an impact on the Company�s financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109� (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise�s financial statements in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, �Accounting for Income Taxes�. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return and
also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. FIN 48 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company is assessing the impact of FIN 48 which is not expected to have an
impact on the Company�s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

(12) SUPPLEMENTAL CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION

In connection with the Debt Offering discussed above, all of the Company�s current active subsidiaries (the Guarantor Subsidiaries) jointly,
severally and unconditionally guaranteed the payment obligations under the Debt Offering. The following supplemental financial information
sets forth, on a consolidating basis, the balance sheet, statement of operations and cash flow information for Energy Partners, Ltd. (Parent
Company Only) and for the Guarantor Subsidiaries. The Company has not presented separate financial statements and other disclosures
concerning the Guarantor Subsidiaries because management has determined that such information is not material to investors.
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(UNAUDITED)

The supplemental condensed consolidating financial information has been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations for condensed financial
information and does not include all disclosures included in annual financial statements, although the Company believes that the disclosures
made are adequate to make the information presented not misleading. Certain reclassifications were made to conform all of the financial
information to the financial presentation on a consolidated basis. The principal eliminating entries eliminate investments in subsidiaries,
intercompany balances and intercompany revenues and expenses.

Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

As of June 30, 2006

Parent
Company
Only

Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

(in thousands)
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,879 $ �  $ �  $ 12,879
Accounts receivable 158,242 (4,761) �  153,481
Other current assets 4,439 63 �  4,502

Total current assets 175,560 (4,698) �  170,862
Property and equipment 926,351 428,376 �  1,354,727
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization (349,446) (159,092) �  (508,538)

Net property and equipment 576,905 269,284 �  846,189
Investment in affiliates 223,435 (331) (223,104) �  
Notes receivable, long-term �  216,370 (216,370) �  
Other assets 60,698 (21) �  60,677

$ 1,036,598 $ 480,604 $ (439,474) $ 1,077,728

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 192,702 $ 1,520 $ �  $ 194,222
Fair value of commodity derivative instruments 4,333 �  �  4,333

Total current liabilities 197,035 1,520 �  198,555
Long-term debt 270,000 216,370 (216,370) 270,000
Other liabilities 130,492 39,610 �  170,102

597,527 257,500 (216,370) 638,657

Stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock �  3 (3) �  
Common stock 420 97 (97) 420
Additional paid-in capital 358,265 525 (525) 358,265
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (4,929) �  �  (4,929)
Retained earnings 142,755 222,479 (222,479) 142,755
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Treasury stock (57,440) �  �  (57,440)

Total stockholders� equity 439,071 223,104 (223,104) 439,071

$ 1,036,598 $ 480,604 $ (439,474) $ 1,077,728
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

Six Months Ended June 30, 2006

Parent
Company
Only

Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

(in thousands)
Revenue:
Oil and natural gas $ 145,553 $ 84,651 $ �  $ 230,204
Other (8,274) 110 8,385 221

137,279 84,761 8,385 230,425

Costs and expenses:
Lease operating 367 29,930 �  30,297
Taxes, other than on earnings (424) 5,610 �  5,186
Exploration expenditures 30,718 11,661 �  42,379
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 51,220 45,557 �  96,777
General and administrative 24,350 7,887 (7,500) 24,737
Other expense 1,877 �  �  1,877

Total costs and expenses 108,108 100,645 (7,500) 201,253
Business interruption recovery 23,283 �  �  23,283
Income from operations 52,454 (15,884) 15,885 52,455

Interest expense, net (9,530) (1) �  (9,531)

Income before income taxes 42,924 (15,885) 15,885 42,924
Income taxes (15,536) �  �  (15,536)

Net income $ 27,388 $ (15,885) $ 15,885 $ 27,388
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Six Months Ended June 30, 2006

Parent
Company
Only

Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

(in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 151,088 $ 23,842 $ �  $ 174,930
Cash flows used in investing activities:
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (43,920) �  �  (43,920)
Property acquisitions (14,163) �  �  (14,163)
Exploration and development expenditures (122,811) (23,733) �  (146,544)
Other property and equipment additions (334) �  �  (334)

Net cash used in investing activities (181,228) (23,733) �  (204,961)

Cash flows used in financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debt (30,000) (109) �  (30,109)
Proceeds from long-term debt 65,000 �  �  65,000
Deferred financing costs (627) �  �  (627)
Exercise of stock options and warrants 1,857 �  �  1,857

Net cash used in financing activities 36,230 (109) �  36,121

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 6,090 �  �  6,090
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 6,789 �  �  6,789

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 12,879 $ �  $ �  $ 12,879

(13) CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is a defendant in various legal proceedings. The Company does not expect its exposure in these
proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations or liquidity of the
Company.

(14) RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior period financial statements in order to conform to the classification adopted for reporting in
fiscal 2006.
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Item 2. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

We were incorporated in January 1998 and operate in a single segment as an independent oil and natural gas exploration and production
company. Our current operations are concentrated in the Shelf and deepwater Gulf of Mexico as well as the Gulf Coast onshore region.

While the impacts of Hurricanes Katrina, Rita, Cindy, Dennis and Emily (the �Tropical Weather�) were significant in 2005 and continued to affect
us into the second quarter of 2006, we have continued to make progress toward implementing our long-term growth strategy to increase our oil
and natural gas reserves and production while keeping our finding and development costs and operating costs competitive with our industry
peers. We will implement this strategy through drilling exploratory and development wells from our inventory of available prospects that we
have evaluated for geologic and mechanical risk and future reserve or resource potential and by making acquisitions, including acquisitions in
our core focus area which includes the Gulf of Mexico Shelf and onshore Gulf Coast regions and, as a result of an acquisition of acreage in the
first half of 2006, the deepwater Gulf of Mexico. We also evaluate acquisition opportunities outside of our core focus area as a complement to
the exploration and development activities we have budgeted for that area. Our drilling program contains some higher risk, higher reserve
potential opportunities as well as some lower risk, lower reserve potential opportunities, in order to achieve a balanced program of reserve and
production growth.

On June 22, 2006, we entered into an agreement and plan of merger (the �Merger Agreement�) with Stone Energy Corporation (�Stone�), pursuant
to which EPL Acquisition Corp. LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary, would acquire all of the shares of Stone for a combination of cash and stock
valued at approximately $2.1 billion based on our July 19, 2006 closing stock price of $17.50 per share. Under the terms of the Merger
Agreement, each share of Stone common stock will be converted into the right to receive, at the election of the holder: (i) $51.00 in cash, or
(ii) a number of shares of our common stock equivalent to the ratio determined by dividing $51.00 by the market price of our shares (based on a
20-day trading average prior to the third trading day preceding the closing), provided that the exchange ratio will not be greater than 2.525 or
less than 2.066 of our shares per Stone share. The election of cash or stock will be subject to a limit on total cash consideration of approximately
$723 million (which includes $15.5 million attributable to stock options) and a limit on the total number of our shares issued of approximately
35 million. Prior to entering into the Merger Agreement, Stone terminated its then existing merger agreement with Plains Exploration and
Production Company (Plains) on the same day. As required under the terms of the terminated merger agreement between Stone and Plains,
Plains was entitled to a break-up fee of $43.5 million, which was advanced by us to Plains. The acquisition is expected to close early in the
fourth quarter of 2006.

We have received a commitment letter from Bank of America, N.A., Bank of America Securities LLC and Banc of America Bridge LLC to
provide an aggregate of up to $2.03 billion to finance the cash consideration to be paid in the merger and relative trasactions, including the
refinancing of Stone�s outstanding indebtedness. Following the merger, we expect to have outstanding (i) $150 million of our existing 8.75%
senior notes due 2010, (ii) a $600 million senior secured revolving credit facility, with an initial borrowing base of $350 million, which would
replace our existing bank credit facility, (iii) a new $700 million second lien term loan, and (iv) either a $730 million bridge loan or $730 million
in aggregate principal amount of new senior notes.

We use the successful efforts method of accounting for our investment in oil and natural gas properties. Under this method, we capitalize lease
acquisition costs, costs to drill and complete exploration wells in which proven reserves are discovered and costs to drill and complete
development wells. Exploratory drilling costs are charged to expense if and when the well is determined not to have found reserves in
commercial quantities. Seismic, geological and geophysical and delay rental expenditures are expensed as they are incurred. We conduct many
of our exploration and development activities jointly with others and, accordingly, recorded amounts for our oil and natural gas properties reflect
only our proportionate interest in such activities. Our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, includes a
discussion of our critical accounting policies, which have not changed significantly since the end of the fiscal year.

On June 2, 2006, we amended and extended to May 2011 our bank credit facility and increased our borrowing base from $150 million to $225
million. Modifications to the bank credit facility include, among other things, the expansion of the revolving credit facility to $300 million from
$200 million (subject to borrowing base limitations) and improved grid pricing for interest rate margins and commitment fees. In addition, under
the amended bank credit facility, we have the ability to increase availability under the revolver to $400 million, subject to borrowing base
limitations. At June 30, 2006 we had $120 million outstanding under the bank credit facility. The borrowing base remains subject to
redetermination based on the proved reserves of the oil and natural gas properties that serve as collateral for the bank credit facility.
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On March 8, 2005, we closed the acquisition of the remaining 50% working interest in South Timbalier 26 above approximately 13,000 feet
subsea that we did not already own for approximately $19.6 million after preliminary closing adjustments. As a result of the acquisition, we now
own a 100% working interest in the producing horizons in this field. The acquisition expands our interest in our core Greater Bay Marchand area
and gives us additional flexibility in undertaking the future development of the South Timbalier 26 field.

On January 20, 2005, we closed an acquisition of properties and reserves in south Louisiana for $149.6 million in cash, after adjustments for the
exercise of preferential rights by third parties and preliminary closing adjustments. The acquisition was composed of nine fields, four of which
were producing at the time of the closing through 14 wells, with estimated acquisition date proved reserves of 51.2 billion cubic feet equivalent.
Also included were interests in 22 exploratory prospects. The transaction expanded the exploration opportunities in our expanded focus area and
further reduced the concentration of our reserves and production. Upon the signing of the purchase agreement, we paid a $5.0 million deposit in
2004 toward the purchase price which was recorded as other assets in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2004. In connection
with the acquisition, we also entered into a two-year agreement with the seller of the properties that defined an area of mutual interest (�AMI�)
encompassing over one million acres. We intend to continue to explore and develop oil and natural gas reserves in the AMI over the two year
term jointly with the seller. The proved reserves, prospects and the AMI are in the southern portions of Terrebone, Lafourche and Jefferson
Parishes in Louisiana.

We have included the results of operations from the 2005 acquisitions discussed above from their respective closing dates.

On August 29, 2005, Hurricane Katrina made landfall in the United States south of New Orleans causing catastrophic damage throughout
portions the Gulf of Mexico and to portions of Alabama, Louisiana and Mississippi, including New Orleans. As a result of the devastating
effects of the storm on New Orleans and surrounding areas, we announced on August 30 that we had elected to establish temporary headquarters
at our Houston, Texas office. A satellite office was also established in Baton Rouge, Louisiana.

On September 24, 2005, Hurricane Rita made landfall in the United States on the Texas/Louisiana border. This hurricane caused extensive
damage throughout portions of the region particularly to third party infrastructure such as pipelines and processing plants.

As a result of these two major hurricanes and other Tropical Weather, nearly all of our production was shut in at one time or another during the
third quarter of 2005 and a small portion of that production had not yet been restored by the end of the second quarter of 2006. We are
continuing to work to bring back shut-in production to pre-storm levels. During 2005 we maintained business interruption insurance on our
significant properties, including our East Bay field. Recovery of lost revenue for our East Bay field and three other fields began accruing at
various dates in 2005 as a result of the Tropical Weather. Through June 30, 2006, we had recorded $43.9 million for business interruption
recoveries of which $23.3 million and $20.6 million was recorded in the statement of operations in the first half of 2006 and fourth quarter of
2005, respectively. Production was fully restored in three of these fields in 2005, at which time coverage ceased as to these fields, and recoveries
will continue to accrue at East Bay Field until the earlier of production being fully restored to pre-storm levels or the one year anniversary of the
date on which that recovery began accruing in the field.

Our revenue, profitability and future growth rate depend substantially on factors beyond our control, such as economic, political and regulatory
developments, tropical weather and competition from other sources of energy. Oil and natural gas prices historically have been volatile and may
fluctuate widely in the future. Sustained periods of low prices for oil and natural gas could materially and adversely affect our financial position,
our results of operations, the quantities of oil and natural gas reserves that we can economically produce and our access to capital.

We currently have an extensive inventory of drillable prospects in-house, we are generating more prospects internally and we are exploring new
opportunities through relationships with industry partners. Despite our expanded budget in 2006, strong commodity prices applied to our
produced volumes, even after taking into account the effect of the Tropical Weather in late 2005 on those volumes, should enable us to adhere to
our policy of funding our exploration and development expenditures with internally generated cash flow. This strategy allows us to preserve our
balance sheet to finance acquisitions and other capital intensive projects that might result from exploration and development activities. We
believe the near term may provide us with opportunities to acquire targeted properties, including those within our focus area.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table presents information about our oil and natural gas operations.

REVENUES AND NET INCOME

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005 2006 2005
Net production (per day):
Oil (Bbls) 8,187 10,469 7,689 10,225
Natural gas (Mcf) 119,578 99,941 107,274 98,067
Total barrels of oil equivalent (Boe) 28,117 27,126 25,568 26,570
Oil and natural gas revenues (in thousands):
Oil $ 45,981 $ 43,637 $ 84,234 $ 84,656
Natural gas 75,099 62,593 145,970 119,027
Total 121,080 106,230 230,204 203,683
Average sales prices, net of hedging:
Oil (per Bbl) $ 61.72 $ 45.80 $ 60.53 $ 45.74
Natural gas (per Mcf) 6.90 6.88 7.52 6.71
Total (per Boe) 47.32 43.03 49.74 42.35
Impact of hedging:
Oil (per Bbl) $ �  $ (1.74) $ �  $ (1.46)
Natural gas (per Mcf) �  �  (0.05) �  
Average costs (per Boe):
Lease operating expense $ 6.69 $ 5.72 $ 6.37 $ 5.52
Taxes, other than on earnings 0.86 1.08 1.12 1.13
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 19.40 11.20 20.91 11.05

Increase in oil and natural gas revenues between periods presented (net of hedging)
due to:
Changes in prices of oil $ 15,129 $ 28,036
Changes in production volumes of oil (12,785) (28,458)

Total increase (decrease) in oil sales 2,344 (422)

Changes in prices of natural gas $ 182 $ 14,396
Changes in production volumes of natural gas 12,324 12,547

Total increase in natural gas sales 12,506 26,943
Our oil and natural gas revenues increased to $121.1 million in the second quarter of 2006 from $106.2 million in the second quarter of 2005.
Our oil and natural gas revenues increased to $230.2 million in the first half of 2006 from $203.7 million in the first half of 2005. The increase
for these periods is the result of a continued increase in oil and natural gas prices as well as an increase in natural gas production due to the
commencement of production on our South Timbalier 41 B-2 well offset by a decrease in oil production during the quarter and year to date
periods. These increases were partially offset by natural reservoir declines.

We recognized net income of $12.6 million in the second quarter of 2006 compared to net income of $18.1 million in the second quarter of
2005. We recognized net income of $27.4 million in the first half of 2006 compared to net income of $38.5 million in the first half of 2005. The
decrease was due to increased operating costs including exploratory costs and a higher depletion rate discussed below partially offset by
increased oil and natural gas prices and business interruption recoveries.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses during the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 were affected by the following:
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� Lease operating expense increased to $17.1 million in the second quarter of 2006 compared $14.1 million in the second quarter of
2005. Lease operating expense increased to $29.5 million in the first half of 2006 compared to $26.6 million in the first half of 2005.
This increase in both periods is primarily a result of a general increase in the cost of oilfield industry services combined with workover
costs and uninsured repairs made in the second quarter of 2006.

21

Edgar Filing: ENERGY PARTNERS LTD - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 33



Table of Contents

� Taxes, other than on earnings, decreased to $2.2 million in the second quarter of 2006 from $2.7 million in the second quarter of 2005.
Taxes, other than on earnings, decreased slightly to $5.2 million in the first half of 2006 from $5.4 million in the first half of 2005.
These taxes are expected to fluctuate from period to period depending on our production volumes from non-federal leases and the
commodity prices received.

� Exploration expenditures, including dry hole costs, increased to $22.8 million in the second quarter of 2006 from $18.9 million in the
second quarter of 2005. The largest contributor to the expense was a dry hole at our West Cameron 25 prospect of approximately $8.5
million. The expense in the second quarter of 2006 is comprised of $15.6 million of costs for exploratory wells or portions thereof
which were found to be not commercially productive, $3.3 million from the impairment of properties and $3.9 million of seismic
expenditures and delay rentals. Seismic expenditures in 2006 included those related to seismic on deepwater prospects. The expense in
the second quarter of 2005 was comprised of $15.9 million of costs for exploratory wells or portions thereof which were found to be
not commercially productive, $0.7 million of proved property impairments and $2.3 million for seismic expenditures and delay
rentals.

Exploration expenditures, including dry hole costs, increased to $42.4 million in the first half of 2006 from $29.6 million in the first half of
2005. The two largest contributors of the increase were dry holes at our West Cameron 25 and Denali prospects of approximately $8.5 million
and $7.5 million, respectively. The expense in the first six months of 2006 is comprised of $28.0 million of costs for exploratory wells or
portions thereof which were found to be not commercially productive, $4.9 million of property impairments and $9.5 million of seismic
expenditures and delay rentals. The expense in the six months of 2005 was comprised of $20.7 million of costs for exploratory wells or portions
thereof which were found to be not commercially productive, $0.7 million of proved property impairments and $8.3 million for seismic
expenditures and delay rentals.

Our exploration expenditures, including dry hole charges, will vary depending on the amount of our capital budget dedicated to exploration
activities and the level of success we achieve in exploratory drilling activities.

� Depreciation, depletion and amortization increased to $49.6 million in the second quarter of 2006 from $27.6 million in the second
quarter of 2005. Depreciation, depletion and amortization increased to $96.8 million in the first half of 2006 from $53.2 million in the
first half of 2005. The increase in the current year periods was a result of a shift in the production contribution from our various fields
as well as reserve revisions taken in several of our onshore properties at the end of 2005. Some fields carry a higher depreciation
burden than others and fields in which more recent exploration and development activity has taken place are starting to reflect the
effect of rising costs of oilfield industry services and capital goods; therefore, changes in the sources of our production will directly
impact this expense.

� General and administrative expenses increased to $12.3 million in the second quarter of 2006 from $10.2 million in the second quarter
of 2005. Included in this expense is stock based compensation of $2.7 million and $1.9 million in the second quarter of 2006 and
2005, respectively. The overall increase was primarily a result of increased insurance costs effective in the second quarter of 2006.

General and administrative expenses increased to $24.7 million in the first half of 2006 from $20.1 million in the first half of 2005. Included in
this expense is stock based compensation of $4.6 million and $3.8 million in the first half of 2006 and 2005, respectively. The overall increase
was primarily attributable to personnel costs and insurance costs mentioned above.

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE

Interest expense increased to $5.2 million in the second quarter of 2006 from $4.3 million in the second quarter of 2005. Interest expense
increased to $10.3 million in the first half of 2006 from $8.4 million in the first half of 2005. The increase was a result of an increase in the
interest rate as well as the average borrowings in the second quarter and first six months of 2006 compared to the same periods in 2005, on
borrowings under our bank credit facility.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The trend of increased revenues we have experienced from 2005 into the first half of 2006 has continued to provide strong cash flows from
operations which totaled $174.9 million in the first half of the year. We intend to fund our exploration and development expenditures from
internally generated cash flows, which we define as cash flows from operations before changes in working capital plus total exploration
expenditures. Our cash on hand at June 30, 2006 was $12.9 million. Our future internally generated cash flows will depend on our ability to

Edgar Filing: ENERGY PARTNERS LTD - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 34



maintain and increase production through our exploratory and development drilling program, as well as the prices we receive for oil and natural
gas. We may, from time to time, use our bank credit facility to fund working capital needs.

22

Edgar Filing: ENERGY PARTNERS LTD - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 35



Table of Contents

Our bank credit facility, as amended on June 2, 2006, consists of a revolving line of credit with a group of banks available though May 2011.
The borrowing base under the bank credit facility was increased in connection with this amendment from $150 million to $225 million. It is
subject to redetermination based on the proved reserves of the oil and natural gas properties that serve as collateral for the bank credit facility as
set out in the reserve report to be delivered to the banks each April 1 and October 1. The bank credit facility permits both prime rate borrowings
and London interbank offered rate (�LIBOR�) borrowings plus a floating spread. The spread will float up or down based on our utilization of the
bank credit facility. The spread can range from 1.00% to 1.75% above LIBOR and 0% to 0.50% above prime. The borrowing base under the
bank credit facility is secured by substantially all of our assets. At August 7, 2006 we had $140.0 million outstanding and $85 million of credit
capacity available under the bank credit facility. In addition, we pay an annual fee on the unused portion of the facility ranging between 0.30%
to 0.50% based on utilization. The bank credit facility contains customary events of default and various financial covenants, which require us to:
(i) maintain a minimum current ratio, as defined in the bank credit facility agreement, of 1.0 and (ii) maintain a minimum EBITDAX to interest
ratio, as defined in the bank credit facility agreement, of 3.5. We were in compliance with the bank credit facility covenants as of June 30, 2006.

On August 5, 2003, we issued $150 million of our 8.75% senior notes due 2010 which were exchanged in October 2003 for registered 8.75%
senior notes due 2010 (the �Senior Notes�) with substantially the same terms. The Senior Notes bear interest at a rate of 8.75% per annum with
interest payable semi-annually on February 1 and August 1, beginning February 1, 2004. We may redeem the Senior Notes at our option, in
whole or in part, at any time on or after August 1, 2007 at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
plus a specified premium which decreases yearly from 4.375% in 2007 to 0% in 2009 and thereafter. In addition, at any time prior to August 1,
2006, we may redeem up to a maximum of 35% of the aggregate principal amount with the net proceeds of certain equity offerings at a price
equal to 108.75% of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest. The notes are unsecured obligations and rank equal in right of
payment to all existing and future senior debt, including the bank credit facility, and will rank senior or equal in right of payment to all existing
and future subordinated indebtedness. The indenture relating to the Senior Notes contains certain restrictions on our ability to incur additional
debt, pay dividends on our common stock, make investments, create liens on our assets, engage in transactions with our affiliates, transfer or sell
assets and consolidate or merge substantially all of our assets. The Senior Notes are not subject to any sinking fund requirements.

Net cash of $205.0 million used in investing activities in the first six months of 2006 consisted primarily of oil and natural gas exploration and
development expenditures. Dry hole costs resulting from exploration expenditures are excluded from operating cash flows and included in
investing activities. During the first six months of 2006, we completed 17 drilling projects, 12 of which were successful, and 21
recompletion/workover projects, 18 of which were successful. During the first six months of 2005, we completed 41 drilling projects, 29 of
which were successful, and 21 recompletion/workover projects, 17 of which were successful.

Our 2006 capital exploration and development budget is focused on exploitation and development activities on our proved properties combined
with moderate risk and higher risk exploratory activities on undeveloped leases and our proved properties, and does not include acquisitions. We
continue to manage our portfolio in order to maintain an appropriate risk balance between low risk development and exploitation activities,
moderate risk exploration opportunities and higher risk, higher potential exploration opportunities. Currently, our exploration and development
budget for 2006 is approximately $360 million. We do not budget for acquisitions. During the first six months of 2006, capital and exploration
expenditures were approximately $251.2 million inclusive of a $43.5 million break-up fee paid to Plains on behalf of Stone to terminate the
merger agreement between Stone and Plains as discussed above and a $0.4 million contingent consideration payment resulting from an
acquisition during 2002. The level of our capital and exploration expenditure budget is based on many factors, including results of our drilling
program, oil and natural gas prices, industry conditions, participation by other working interest owners and the costs and availability of drilling
rigs and other oilfield goods and services. Should actual conditions differ materially from expectations, some projects may be accelerated or
deferred and, consequently, may increase or decrease total 2006 capital expenditures.

We have experienced and expect to continue to experience substantial working capital requirements, primarily due to our active capital
expenditure program. We believe that internally generated cash flows will be sufficient to meet our budgeted capital requirements for at least the
next twelve months. Availability under the bank credit facility may be used to balance short-term fluctuations in working capital requirements.
However, additional financing may be required in the future to fund our growth.

Upon consummation of the acquisition of Stone, we expect that our capital budget will increase significantly in 2007. The acquisition permits us
to high-grade the combined company�s exploration, development and exploitation opportunities in the combined company�s asset base.
High-grading of the combined portfolio is anticipated to increase cash flow available for debt reduction through focused capital spending and the
results of drilling a balanced portfolio of low, moderate and higher
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risk opportunities. In addition, the increased resources of the combined entity will enable us to pursue larger scale projects that have the potential
for increased returns. Additional debt incurred by us upon consummation of the acquisition is expected to consist of (i) $150 million of existing
8.75% senior notes due 2010, (ii) a $600 million senior secured revolving credit facility, with an initial borrowing base of $350 million, which
would replace our existing bank credit facility, (iii) a new $700 million second lien term loan, and (iv) either a $730 million bridge loan or $730
million in aggregate principal amount of new senior notes. We intend to reduce our leverage through the repayment of acquisition related debt in
an amount approximating $700 million by the end of 2008. The reduction will come from a combination of excess cash flow previously
mentioned and through the disposition of as yet unidentified non strategic properties shortly after the merger close. We also intend to hedge up
to 80% of the projected combined production for 2007 and 2008, implemented through a coordinated establishment of positions with Stone to
provide significant downside protection and substantial upside participation to the market. This acquisition is expected to close early in the
fourth quarter of 2006.

Our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 included a discussion of our contractual obligations. There have been no
material changes to that disclosure during the first six months ended June 30, 2006 except that we have entered into two long-term drilling
contracts which commit us to approximately $11 million in 2006 and $14 million in 2007. In addition, we do not maintain any off balance sheet
transactions, arrangements, obligations or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or others that are reasonably likely to have a material
current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues and expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resources.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 153 �Exchanges of Non-monetary assets � an amendment
of APB Opinion No. 29� (�Statement 153�). Statement 153 amends Accounting Principles Board (�APB�) Opinion 29 to eliminate the exception for
nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not
have commercial substance. A nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change
significantly as a result of the exchange. Statement 153 does not apply to a pooling of assets in a joint undertaking intended to fund, develop, or
produce oil or natural gas from a particular property or group of properties. The provisions of Statement 153 shall be effective for nonmonetary
asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. Early adoption is permitted and the provisions of Statement 153
should be applied prospectively. We have adopted the provisions of Statement 153 and it did not have an impact on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 154, �Accounting Changes and Error Corrections � a
replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3,� (�Statement 154�). Statement 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and
reporting of accounting changes and error corrections. It establishes, unless impracticable, retrospective application as the required method for
reporting a change in accounting principle in the absence of explicit transition requirements specific to Statement 154. The provisions of
Statement 154 shall be effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. We
have adopted the provisions of Statement 153 and it did not have an impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 155, �Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments �
an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140� (�Statement 155�). Among other changes, Statement 155 eliminates the exemption from
applying FASB Statement No. 133 to interests in securitized financial assets so that similar instruments are accounted for similarly regardless of
the form of the instruments. Statement 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of an entity�s first fiscal
year that begins after September 15, 2006. We have assessed the impact of Statement 155 which will not have an impact on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 156, �Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets � an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 140� (�Statement 156�). Among other changes, Statement 156 requires that all separately recognized servicing
assets and servicing liabilities be initially measured at fair value, if practicable. Statement 156 is effective for all fiscal years beginning after
September 15, 2006. We have assessed the impact of Statement 156 which will not have an impact on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109� (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise�s financial statements in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, �Accounting for Income Taxes�. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return and
also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. FIN 48 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. We are assessing the impact of FIN 48 which is not expected to have an impact on
our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION

All statements other than statements of historical fact contained in this Report on Form 10-Q (�Report�) and other periodic reports filed by us or
under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 and other written or oral statements made by us or on behalf, are forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties and include information concerning cost savings from the merger. Although
we believe that in making such statements our expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, such statements may be influenced by factors
that could cause actual outcomes and results to be materially different from those projected.

Except for our respective obligations to disclose material information under U.S. federal securities laws, we do not undertake any obligation to
release publicly any revisions to any forward-looking statements, to report events or circumstances after the date of this document, or to report
the occurrence of unanticipated events.

Statements that are predictive in nature, that depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, or that include words such as �will,� �would,�
�should,� �plans,� �likely,� �expects,� �anticipates,� �intends,� �believes,� �estimates,� �thinks,� �may,� and similar expressions, are forward-looking statements. The
following important factors, in addition to those discussed under �Risk Factors� and elsewhere in this document, could affect the future results of
the energy industry in general and could cause those results to differ materially from those expressed in or implied by such forward-looking
statements:

� uncertainties inherent in the development and production of and exploration for oil and natural gas and in estimating reserves;

� the effects of our substantial indebtedness, which could adversely restrict our ability to operate, could make us vulnerable to general
adverse economic and industry conditions, could place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less
debt, and could have other adverse consequences;

� unexpected difficulties in integrating the operations of us and Stone;

� unexpected future capital expenditures (including the amount and nature thereof);

� impact of oil and natural gas price fluctuations;

� the effects of competition;

� the success of our risk management activities;

� the availability (or lack thereof) of acquisition or combination opportunities;

� the impact of current and future laws and governmental regulations;

� environmental liabilities that are not covered by an effective indemnity or insurance; and
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� general economic, market or business conditions.
All written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on behalf of us are expressly qualified in their entirety by
such factors. We refer you specifically to the section �Risk Factors� in Item 1A of this Form 10-Q, of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2005 and of our Registration Statement on Form S-4. Although we believe that the assumptions on which any
forward-looking statements in this Report and other periodic reports filed by us are reasonable, no assurance can be given that such assumptions
will prove correct. All forward-looking statements in this document are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements in this
paragraph.

Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

INTEREST RATE RISK

We are exposed to changes in interest rates. Changes in interest rates affect the interest earned on our cash and cash equivalents and the interest
rate paid on borrowings under our bank credit facility. Currently, we do not use interest rate derivative instruments to manage exposure to
interest rate changes. At June 30, 2006, $120.0 million of our long-term debt had variable interest rates while the remaining long-term debt had
fixed interest expense. If the market interest rates had averaged 1% higher in the second quarter of 2006, interest rates for the period on variable
rate debt outstanding during the period would have increased, and net income before income taxes would have decreased by approximately $0.3
million based on total variable debt outstanding during the period. If market interest rates had averaged 1% lower in the second quarter of 2006,
interest expense for the period on variable rate debt would have decreased, and net income before income taxes would have increased by
approximately $0.3 million.
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COMMODITY PRICE RISK

Our revenues, profitability and future growth depend substantially on prevailing prices for oil and natural gas. Prices also affect the amount of
cash flow available for capital expenditures and our ability to borrow and raise additional capital. The amount we can borrow under our bank
credit facility is subject to periodic redetermination based in part on changing expectations of future prices. Lower prices may also reduce the
amount of oil and natural gas that we can economically produce. We currently sell all of our oil and natural gas production under price sensitive
or market price contracts.

We use derivative commodity instruments to manage commodity price risks associated with future oil and natural gas production. As of June 30,
2006, we had the following contracts in place:

Natural Gas Positions

Volume (Mmbtu)
Remaining Contract Term Contract Type Strike Price ($/Mmbtu) Daily Total
07/06 � 12/06 Collar $5.00/$9.51 15,000 2,760,000
01/07 � 12/07 Collar $5.00/$8.00 10,000 3,650,000

Our hedged volume as of June 30, 2006 approximated 7% of our estimated production from proved reserves for the balance of the terms of the
contracts. Had these contracts been terminated at June 30, 2006, we estimate the pre-tax loss would have been $7.7 million.

We use a sensitivity analysis technique to evaluate the hypothetical effect that changes in the market value of crude oil and natural gas may have
on the fair value of our derivative instruments. At June 30, 2006, the potential change in the fair value of commodity derivative instruments
assuming a 10% increase in the underlying commodity price was a $3.0 million increase in the combined estimated pre-tax loss.

For purposes of calculating the hypothetical change in fair value, the relevant variables are the type of commodity (crude oil or natural gas), the
commodities futures prices and volatility of commodity prices. The hypothetical fair value is calculated by multiplying the difference between
the hypothetical price and the contractual price by the contractual volumes.
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Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of certain members of our management, including the principal executive officer, principal
financial officer and principal accounting officer, we completed an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended). Based on this evaluation, our principal executive
officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer believe that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the
end of and during the period covered by this report with respect to timely communication to them and other members of management
responsible for preparing periodic reports and all material information required to be disclosed in this report as it relates to our Company and its
consolidated subsidiaries. There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2006 that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the
control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of
controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the company have been detected. These inherent
limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or
mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons or by collusion of two or more people. The design of
any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that
any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a
cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Accordingly, our disclosure controls and
procedures are designed to provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of our disclosure control system are met and, as set
forth above, our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer have concluded, based on their evaluation
as of the end of and during the period, that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.
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Part II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

As a result of the pending merger with Stone Energy Corporation as discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company
will have additional risks that could affect its business.

Risks Relating to the Merger

Certain directors and executive officers may have interests in the merger different from the interests of other stockholders.

Certain of the directors and executive officers of Stone and the Company are parties to agreements or participate in other arrangements that give
them interests in the merger that are different from the interests of the stockholders of Stone.

The failure to obtain all necessary third party consents and regulatory approvals from governmental entities could prevent or delay the
closing of the merger.

The merger agreement requires that the Company and Stone obtain consents from third parties prior to completion of the merger. The Company
or Stone may waive these requirements with respect to consents to be obtained by the other party at its discretion. If one party waives the other�s
requirement to obtain one or more of these third party consents and they are not obtained, the third party entitled to give the consent may have a
claim against the surviving company, which may result in adverse financial and legal consequences to the surviving company. Further, the delay
or denial of any requisite consents, approvals or exemptions could prevent or delay the closing of the merger.

Risks Relating to the Combined Company After the Merger.

The Company and Stone will incur transaction, integration and restructuring costs in connection with the merger.

The Company and Stone expect to incur significant costs associated with transaction fees, professional services, taxes and other costs related to
the merger. Specifically, the Company expects to incur approximately $40.0 million for transaction costs related to the merger. Furthermore, the
Company has advanced to Plains on behalf of Stone a termination fee of $43.5 million in connection with the termination of the Plains merger
agreement. In addition, the combined company will incur integration and restructuring costs following the completion of the merger as the
combined company integrates the businesses of Stone with those of the Company. Although the Company and Stone expect that the realization
of efficiencies related to the integration of the businesses may offset incremental transaction, merger-related and restructuring costs over time,
no assurances can be made that this net benefit will be achieved in the near term, or at all.

After the merger, the Company will be highly leveraged and its high level of debt may limit its financial and operating flexibility.

The Company is incurring a significant amount of debt to consummate the acquisition and to refinance Stone�s existing debt. The substantial debt
of the Company following the merger could have important consequences to you. For example, it could:

� increase the Company�s vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;

� make it more difficult for EPL to satisfy its financial obligations;

� limit the Company�s ability to fund future working capital and capital expenditures, to engage in future acquisitions or development
activities, or to otherwise realize the value of its assets and opportunities fully because of the need to dedicate a substantial portion of
its cash flow from operations to payments on its debt or to comply with any restrictive terms of its debt;

� limit the Company�s flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in the industry in which it operates; and
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� place EPL at a competitive disadvantage as compared to its competitors that have less debt.
The Company�s ability to satisfy its obligations and to reduce total debt depends on future operating performance and on economic, financial,
competitive and other factors, many of which are beyond the company�s control. The Company�s business may not generate sufficient cash flow,
and future financings may not be available to provide sufficient net proceeds, to meet these obligations or to successfully execute the company�s
business strategy. Realization of any of these factors could adversely affect the Company�s financial condition.
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In addition, upon consummation of the merger, the Company and all of its restricted subsidiaries must comply with various covenants contained
in its credit agreement, the indentures related to its notes and any of its future debt arrangements. These covenants will, among other things, limit
the ability of the respective restricted entities to:

� incur additional debt or liens;

� make payments in respect of or redeem or acquire any debt or equity issued by the Company;

� sell assets;

� make loans or investments;

� acquire or be acquired by other companies; and

� enter into commodities price hedging transactions.
Stone has identified a material weakness in its internal controls relating to the estimation of proved reserves.

The joint proxy/prospectus filed by the Company on Form S-4 contains estimates of Stone�s proved oil and natural gas reserves and the estimated
future net cash flows from such reserves. These estimates are based upon various assumptions, including assumptions required by the SEC
relating to oil and natural gas prices, drilling and operating expenses, capital expenditures, taxes and availability of funds. The process of
estimating oil and natural gas reserves is complex. This process requires significant decisions and assumptions in the evaluation of available
geological, geophysical, engineering and economic data for each reservoir and is therefore inherently imprecise. Additionally, Stone�s
interpretations of the rules governing the estimation of proved reserves could differ from the interpretation of staff members of regulatory
authorities resulting in estimates that could be challenged by these authorities.

Actual future production, oil and natural gas prices, revenues, taxes, development expenditures, operating expenses and quantities of recoverable
oil and natural gas reserves will most likely vary from those estimated. Any significant variance could materially affect the estimated quantities
and present value of reserves set forth in this document and the information incorporated by reference. Stone�s properties may also be susceptible
to hydrocarbon drainage from production by other operators on adjacent properties. In addition, we may adjust estimates of proved reserves to
reflect production history, results of exploration and development, prevailing oil and natural gas prices and other factors, many of which are
beyond our control.

As articulated in �Item 4. Controls and Procedures� of Stone�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2006, in October
2005 Stone completed an internal review of its estimates of proved oil and natural gas reserves. As a result of this review, Stone revised its
proved reserves for the period from December 31, 2001 to June 30, 2005 and restated its financial statements for the first six months of 2005 and
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001. Stone identified deficiencies in its internal controls that did not prevent the
overstatement of its proved oil and natural gas reserves. Stone management concluded that these deficiencies constituted a material weakness in
Stone�s internal controls over financial reporting. As of the date of its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2006,
Stone had not completely mitigated the causes of this weakness because it had not had an adequate passage of time to monitor the progress of its
continuing training programs. In addition, Stone�s outside engineering firm had not yet fully engineered 100% of its proved reserves.

Stone is subject to ongoing inquiries by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Philadelphia Stock Exchange and has been
named as a defendant in certain stockholder lawsuits resulting from its reserve revision, the ultimate resolution of which and their
impact on Stone is uncertain.

In connection with the revisions of Stone�s estimated proved reserve quantities and the restatement of its financial statements for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001, Stone received notice on or about November 10, 2005 from the staff of the Securities and Exchange
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Commission (the �Staff�) that the Staff is conducting an informal inquiry into the revision of Stone�s proved reserves and the financial statement
restatement. The Staff has also informed Stone that it is likely to seek a formal order of investigation in connection with its inquiry. In addition,
Stone has received an inquiry from the Philadelphia Stock Exchange investigating matters including trading prior to Stone�s October 6, 2005
announcement of its reserve revision. Additionally, a number of putative shareholder class actions and shareholder derivative actions related to
the reserve revision and the financial statement restatement have been filed against Stone and certain of its current and former officers and
directors. The derivative actions also assert claims related to the proposed merger transaction with Plains. Please read �Stone�s Business�Legal
Proceedings� for additional information.

These actions are at an early stage and subject to substantial uncertainties concerning the outcome of material factual and legal issues relating to
the litigation and the regulatory proceedings. Accordingly, based on the current status of the
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litigation and inquiries, we cannot currently predict the manner and timing of the resolution of these matters and are unable to estimate a range
of possible losses or any minimum loss from such matters. Furthermore, to the extent that the combined company�s insurance policies are
ultimately available to cover any costs and/or liabilities resulting from these actions, they may not be sufficient to cover all costs and liabilities
incurred by us and Stone�s current and former officers and directors in these regulatory and civil proceedings.

Volatile oil and natural gas prices could adversely affect the combined company�s financial condition and results of operations.

The combined company�s success is largely dependent on oil and natural gas prices, which are extremely volatile and are or recently have been at
historically high levels. Any substantial or extended decline in the price of oil and natural gas will have a negative impact on the combined
company�s business operations and future revenues. Moreover, oil and natural gas prices depend on factors that will be outside the combined
company�s control, such as:

� changes in the global supply, demand and inventories of oil;

� domestic natural gas supply, demand and inventories;

� the actions of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries, or OPEC;

� the price and quantity of foreign imports of oil;

� the price and availability of liquefied natural gas imports;

� political conditions, including embargoes, in or affecting other oil-producing countries;

� general economic conditions in the United Stated and worldwide;

� economic and energy infrastructure disruptions caused by actual or threatened acts of war, or terrorist activities, or national security
measures deployed to protect the United States from such actual or threatened acts or activities;

� economic stability of major oil and natural gas companies and the interdependence of oil and natural gas and energy trading
companies;

� the level of worldwide oil and natural gas exploration and production activity;

� weather conditions, including energy infrastructure disruptions resulting from those conditions;

� technological advances affecting energy consumption; and
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� the price and availability of alternative fuels.
We may not realize the benefits of integrating our companies.

To be successful after the merger, the Company and Stone will need to combine and integrate the operations of their separate companies into one
company. The integration will require substantial management attention and could divert attention away from the day-to-day business of the
combined company. The Company and Stone could encounter difficulties in the integration process, such as the loss of key employees or
commercial relationships. If the Company and Stone cannot integrate their businesses successfully, they may fail to realize the benefits they
expect to realize from the merger. Potential difficulties the combined company may encounter in the integration process include the following:

� if we are unable to successfully combine the businesses of the Company and Stone in a manner that permits the combined company to
achieve the administrative and operating synergies and related cost savings anticipated to result from the merger, such anticipated
benefits of the merger may not be realized fully or at all or may take longer to realize than expected;

� complexities associated with managing the combined businesses;

� potential unknown liabilities and unforeseen increased expenses or delays associated with the merger;

� performance shortfalls at one or both of the two companies as a result of the diversion of management�s attention to the merger; and

� the loss of key employees, the disruption or interruption of, or the loss of momentum in, each company�s ongoing businesses or
inconsistencies in standards, controls, procedures and policies.

The realization of any of these potential difficulties could adversely affect the combined company�s ability to maintain relationships with
customers and employees or its ability to achieve the anticipated benefits of the merger, or could reduce earnings or otherwise adversely affect
the business and financial results of the combined company.
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The combined company may incur substantial losses and be subject to substantial liability claims as a result of its oil and natural gas
operations.

Losses and liabilities arising from uninsured and underinsured events could materially and adversely affect the business, financial condition or
results of operations of the combined company. Oil and natural gas exploration and production activities are subject to all of the operating risks
associated with drilling for and producing oil and natural gas, including the possibility of:

� environmental hazards, such as uncontrollable flows of oil, natural gas, brine, well fluids, toxic gas or other pollution into the
environment, including groundwater and shoreline contamination;

� unanticipated, abnormally pressured formations;

� mechanical difficulties, such as stuck oil field drilling and service tools and casing collapse;

� fires and explosions;

� personal injuries and death; and

� natural disasters, especially hurricanes and tropical storms in the Gulf of Mexico.
In addition, the combined company�s operations in the Gulf Coast region (including the Gulf of Mexico), where all of the company�s estimated
proved reserves and production in 2005 were located and where approximately 76% of Stone�s estimated proved reserves at December 31, 2005
and 89% of Stone�s production during 2005 were associated, are susceptible to hurricanes. Any of these operating hazards could cause serious
injuries, fatalities, oil spills, discharge of hazardous materials, remediation and clean-up costs and other environmental damages, or property
damage, which could expose the combined company to liabilities. The payment of any of these liabilities could reduce, or even eliminate, the
funds available for exploration, development, and acquisition, or could result in a loss of the combined company�s properties.

Consistent with insurance coverage generally available to the industry, the Company�s insurance policies provide limited coverage for losses or
liabilities. The insurance market in general and the energy insurance market in particular have been difficult markets in which to obtain coverage
over the past several years, particularly as a result of the impact of Hurricanes Katrina and Rita. As a result, the Company does not believe that
insurance coverage for the full potential liability, especially environmental liability, is currently available at reasonable cost. If the combined
company incurs substantial liability and the damages are not covered by insurance or are in excess of policy limits, or if the combined company
incurs liability at a time when it is not able to obtain liability insurance, then the combined company�s business, results of operations and
financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

The nature of the combined company�s business and assets will expose it to significant compliance costs and liabilities.

The combined company�s operations, involving the exploration, production, storage, treatment, and transportation of liquid hydrocarbons,
including crude oil, will be subject to stringent federal, state, and local laws and regulations governing the discharge of materials into the
environment. The combined company�s operations are subject to laws and regulations relating to protection of the environment, operational
safety, and related matters. Compliance with all of these laws and regulations will continue to represent a significant cost of doing business,
including to construct, maintain, and upgrade equipment and facilities. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may result in the
assessment of administrative, civil, and criminal penalties; the imposition of investigatory and remedial liabilities; the issuance of injunctions
that may restrict, inhibit or prohibit the combined company�s operations; or claims of damages to property or persons.

With an expansion of its assets, the combined company may experience a corresponding increase in the number of releases of hydrocarbons or
other materials to the environment. These releases will expose the combined company to potentially substantial expense, including cleanup and
remediation costs, fines and penalties, and third-party claims for personal injury or property damage. Some of these expenses could increase by
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amounts disproportionately higher than the relative increase in assets and the increase in revenues associated therewith.

Exploring for and producing oil and natural gas are high-risk activities with many uncertainties that could adversely affect our
business, financial condition or results of operations.

The combined Company�s future success will depend on the success of its exploration and production activities. The combined Company�s oil and
natural gas exploration and production activities are subject to numerous risks beyond its control, including the risk that drilling will not result in
commercially viable oil or natural gas production. Our decisions to
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purchase, explore, develop or otherwise exploit prospects or properties will depend in part on the evaluation of data obtained through
geophysical and geological analyses, production data and engineering studies, the results of which are often inconclusive or subject to varying
interpretations. The combined company�s cost of drilling, completing and operating wells is often uncertain before drilling commences. Overruns
in budgeted expenditures are common risks that can make a particular project uneconomical. Further, many factors may curtail, delay or cancel
drilling, including the following:

� pressure or irregularities in geological formations;

� shortages of or delays in obtaining equipment and qualified personnel;

� equipment failures or accidents;

� adverse weather conditions, such as hurricanes and tropical storms;

� reductions in oil and natural gas prices;

� title problems;

� limitations in the market for oil and natural gas; and

� cost of services to drill wells.
Reserve estimates depend on many assumptions that may prove to be inaccurate. Any material inaccuracies in these reserve estimates
or underlying assumptions will materially affect the quantities and present value of our reserves.

The process of estimating oil and natural gas reserves is complex. It requires interpretations of available technical data and many assumptions,
including assumptions relating to economic factors. Any significant inaccuracies in these interpretations or assumptions could materially affect
the estimated quantities and present value of reserves.

In order to assist in the preparation of the combined company�s estimates, it must project production rates and timing of development
expenditures. The combined company must also analyze available geological, geophysical, production and engineering data. The extent, quality
and reliability of these data can vary. The process also requires economic assumptions about matters such as oil and natural gas prices, drilling
and operating expenses, capital expenditures, taxes and availability of funds. Therefore, estimates of oil and natural gas reserves are inherently
imprecise.

Actual future production, oil and natural gas prices, revenues, taxes, development expenditures, operating expenses and quantities of recoverable
oil and natural gas reserves most likely will vary from the combined company�s estimates.

It cannot be assumed that the present value of future net revenues from the combined company�s proved reserves referred to in the Form S-4 is
the current market value of the combined company�s estimated oil and natural gas reserves. In accordance with SEC requirements, the combined
company�s bases the estimated discounted future net cash flows from proved reserves on prices and costs on the date of the estimate. Actual
future prices and costs may differ materially from those used in the present-value estimate.

Market conditions or operational impediments may hinder our access to oil and natural gas markets or delay our production.
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Market conditions or the unavailability of satisfactory oil and natural gas transportation arrangements may hinder access to oil and natural gas
markets or delay the combined company�s production. The availability of a ready market for the combined company�s oil and natural gas
production depends on a number of factors, including the demand for and supply of oil and natural gas and the proximity of reserves to pipelines
and terminal facilities. The combined company�s ability to market its production depends in substantial part on the availability and capacity of
gathering systems, pipelines and processing facilities owned and operated by third parties. The combined company�s failure to obtain such
services on acceptable terms could harm its business. The combined company may be required to shut in wells for lack of a market or because of
inadequacy or unavailability of oil or natural gas pipeline or gathering system capacity. If that were to occur, the combined company would be
unable to realize revenue from those wells until production arrangements were made to deliver to market.
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The loss of key personnel could adversely affect the combined company.

To a large extent, the combined company depends on the services of our chairman and chief executive officer, Richard A. Bachmann, its
president and chief operating officer, Phillip A. Gobe, and other senior management personnel. The loss of the services of Messrs. Bachmann or
Gobe or other senior management personnel could have an adverse effect on operations. The combined company does not maintain any
insurance against the loss of any of these individuals. The exploration and production business is highly competitive, and the combined
company�s success will depend largely on its ability to attract and retain experienced geoscientists and other professional staff.

Competition in the oil and natural gas industry is intense, which may adversely affect the combined company.

The combined company operates in a highly competitive environment for acquiring oil and natural gas properties, marketing oil and natural gas
and securing trained personnel. Many of its competitors possess and employ financial, technical and personnel resources substantially greater
than the combined company, which can be particularly important in Gulf of Mexico, Gulf Coast onshore and Rocky Mountain activities. Those
companies may be able to pay more for productive oil and natural gas properties and exploratory prospects and to define, evaluate, bid for and
purchase a greater number of properties and prospects than the combined company�s financial or personnel resources permit. The combined
company�s ability to acquire additional prospects and to discover reserves in the future will depend on its ability to evaluate and select suitable
properties and to consummate transactions in a highly competitive environment. Also, there is substantial competition for capital available for
investment in the oil and natural gas industry. The combined company cannot make assurances that it will be able to compete successfully in the
future in acquiring prospective reserves, developing reserves, marketing hydrocarbons, attracting and retaining quality personnel and raising
additional capital. If the combined company is unable to compete successfully in these areas in the future, its future revenues and growth may be
diminished or restricted.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Period
(a) Total Number of
Shares Purchased

(b) Average Price Paid
per Share (1)

(c) Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans
or Programs (1)

(d) Maximum Number of
Shares that May Yet Be
Purchased Under the
Plans or Programs (1)

4/1/06 � 4/30/06 �  n/a n/a n/a
5/1/06 � 5/31/06 5,239 26.90 n/a n/a
6/1/06 � 6/30/06 �  n/a n/a n/a

Total 5,239 26.90 n/a n/a

(1) Shares were acquired from employees as tax withholding pursuant to a benefit plan agreement and were not purchased as part of a publicly
announced plan or program.
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Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO THE VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

(a) At the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company held on May 4, 2006, the stockholders elected 11 directors to serve until the 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, approved the Amendment to the Company�s certificate of incorporation increasing the number of
authorized shares of the Company�s Common Stock from 50 million to 100 million, approved the adoption of the Company�s 2006 Long
Term Stock Incentive Plan and ratified the appointment of KPMG LLP as the Company�s independent public accountants for the year
ended December 31, 2006.

The voting tabulation is as follows:

FOR WITHHELD
Election as a Director of the Company:
Richard A. Bachmann 33,026,966 1,917,347
John C. Bumgarner, Jr. 34,058,789 885,524
Jerry D. Carlisle 34,166,853 777,460
Harold D. Carter 34,061,065 883,653
Enoch L. Dawkins 33,742,675 1,201,638
Robert D. Gershen 34,060,660 883,653
Phillip A. Gobe 34,167,517 776,796
William R. Herrin, Jr. 34,058,652 885,661
William O. Hiltz 34,061,411 882,902
John G. Phillips 34,054,921 889,392
Norman D. Francis 33,070,740 1,873,573

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
Approve the Amendment to the Company�s certificate of
incorporation increasing the number of authorized shares of the
Company�s Common Stock from 50 million to 100 million:

30,727,397 4,024,638 192,278

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
Approve the adoption of the Company�s 2006 Long Term Stock
Incentive Plan:

20,514,054 5,203,647 205,625

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
Ratify appointment of KPMG LLP as the Company�s
independent public accountants:

34,229,390 698,371 16,552

Item 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibits:
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) of Energy Partners,

Ltd.

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Treasurer (principal financial officer) of Energy Partners, Ltd.

32.0 Section 1350 Certifications

99.1 Commitment Letter, dated as of June 14, 2006, by and among Banc of America Securities LLC, Banc of America Bridge LLC, Bank
of America, N.A. and Energy Partners, Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.6 of the Company�s S-4 filed July 21, 2006).
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

ENERGY PARTNERS, LTD.

Date: August 9, 2006 By: /s/ Joseph H. LeBlanc, Jr.
Joseph H. LeBlanc, Jr.
Treasurer
(authorized officer and principal financial officer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) of Energy Partners,

Ltd.

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Treasurer (principal financial officer) of Energy Partners, Ltd.

32.0 Section 1350 Certifications

99.1 Commitment Letter, dated as of June 14, 2006, by and among Banc of America Securities LLC, Banc of America Bridge LLC, Bank
of America, N.A. and Energy Partners, Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.6 of the Company�s S-4 filed July 21, 2006).
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